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          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Good afternoon,

          3  and welcome to today's Civil Service and Labor

          4  Committee hearing.

          5                 I welcome you all here.  My name is

          6  Joe Addabbo, I will be chairing the committee.

          7                 And again, I want to thank you for

          8  all being here.

          9                 Today's hearing basically, it is

         10  going help set the agenda for coming year in 2006,

         11  our Legislative Year.

         12                 Today's oversight hearing will center

         13  on issues that concern over 3 million union and non-

         14  union workers in the city work force.

         15                 Last year this Committee addressed

         16  many labor issues, such as the One- in- Three rule

         17  and the eligibility list, pension issues, big box

         18  store issues and their treatment of workers,

         19  mandatory mail order drug prescriptions, issues

         20  involving over the 25,000 hotel workers in the City,

         21  health related benefits for surviving spouses and

         22  domestic partners on both, on the job related

         23  deaths, as well as those for the retiree's, labor

         24  issues regarding the MTA merger with the private

         25  buses, the status of school safety offices, issues
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          2  involving more than the 165,000 restaurant workers,

          3  and many other labor related issues, all for the

          4  benefit of our City's work force and their families.

          5                 So as we start this new 2006

          6  Legislative Year, I am optimistic with this

          7  Committee, that by working together we can address,

          8  and in many cases solve the issues that come before

          9  us.

         10                 I look forward to working with my

         11  colleagues who sit with me on this Committee, and I

         12  would like to welcome back Council Member Larry

         13  Seabrook onto the committee, and especially welcome

         14  our new committee members, Council Member Gennaro,

         15  and Council Member Mark- Viverito.

         16                 I thank them for being here, and

         17  welcome them to the Committee.  Council Member Mike

         18  Nelson, also new to the Committee will be arriving a

         19  little later.

         20                 I would also like to thank those who

         21  put this hearing together today.

         22                 Our Committee's new legal counsel, to

         23  my right here, Harold Gates, our Policy Analyst

         24  coming back once more is Joan Povolny, our Financial

         25  Policy Analyst, Dan Turriago, my Legislative Aid,
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          2  Steve Adenesio (phonetic), and of course the

          3  Sergeant- At- Arms who are here today to put

          4  everything together, and Sarah for the media.  Thank

          5  you, Sarah.

          6                 But again, I would like to thank you

          7  all for being here, and I think this type of hearing

          8  is very helpful- that we hear the issues that are

          9  out there, at least some of them, and again, as we

         10  embark on ways that we can help the City's work

         11  force.

         12                 This Committee will work with certain

         13  City agencies as you may know, DCAS, the Office of

         14  Labor Relations, Office of Collective Bargaining,

         15  Equal Employment Practices Commission, NYCERS, and

         16  others, and again for the benefits of the city work

         17  force and their families.

         18                 So without further ado, I am going to

         19  be calling up the witnesses to the panel here.  We

         20  are going to limit testimony to three minutes, only

         21  again so that it allows us to hear everyone and also

         22  keep the hearing moving, as well as give time for

         23  questions and answers.

         24                 So I appreciate, again, going

         25  according to the time allotted.
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          2                 Our first panelist is Nancy Kaleda

          3  from New York State Nurses Association.  Nancy, good

          4  afternoon.  See if you can just please state your

          5  full name, and your affiliation, and give your

          6  testimony, please.

          7                 MS. KALEDA:  Okay thank you.

          8                 Nancy Kaleda, and I am a Senior

          9  Associate Director with the New York State Nurses

         10  Association.

         11                 Hello, good afternoon, and thank you

         12  for giving us the opportunity to testify today.

         13                 The New York State Nurses Association

         14  is the largest all RN union in New York State.  We

         15  represent approximately 32,000 Registered Nurses

         16  across the state, 26,000 of them who actually work

         17  in the City of New York, both in the private sector

         18  and in the public sector, also known as HHC.

         19                 Health care continues to be one of

         20  the most volatile segments of our economy.

         21                 In New York State, the rising cost of

         22  Medicaid has spawned efforts to reduce

         23  reimbursements, including the draconian cuts

         24  proposed by the governor.  He has also created a

         25  Commission with the power to recommend that
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          2  hospitals and nursing homes be stripped of their

          3  certificates to operate as health care institutions.

          4                 This instability is affecting the

          5  health care work force in general, and our

          6  Registered Nurse members in particular. Employers

          7  seeking to improve their bottom line are pushing for

          8  reductions in benefits and offering salary increase

          9  that are below the cost of living.  Several

         10  hospitals have declared bankruptcy, including the

         11  St. Vincent's Catholic Medical Center Systems,

         12  throwing the future of community- accessible health

         13  care, and collective bargaining agreements into

         14  debt.

         15                 At the same time, hospitals are

         16  spending millions on renovations and expansions.

         17  $2.3 billion was spent in 2005 on hospital

         18  construction projects in New York State, $8 billion

         19  more than the year before.  HHC is halfway through a

         20  $1 billion overhaul of all its facilities.

         21                 As a labor organization, it is our

         22  responsibility to remind employers that patient care

         23  is what hospitals are all about. And the nursing

         24  staff is what makes that happen.  A true investment

         25  in the future is to hire a sufficient number of
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          2  nurses to provide quality patient care, not

          3  financing capital improvements such as lobbies with

          4  pianos and waterfalls.

          5                 The way to attract and retain nursing

          6  staff is to provide competitive salaries and

          7  benefits, support staff, and respect nurses'

          8  contributions to the health care delivery system.

          9                 It is a simple answer, and it is the

         10  right answer. But, hospitals continue to try to

         11  balance their books on the back of nurses.

         12                 Right now, NYSNA is locked in a

         13  struggle with the City to obtain a fair contract for

         14  the 6,400 Registered Nurses who work in our City's

         15  hospitals.  These dedicated nurses have been without

         16  a contract for more than three years.  Ironically,

         17  if an agreement was reached today, it would be at or

         18  near expiration.

         19                 At private hospitals, when contract

         20  negotiations drag on and employers refuse to bargain

         21  in good faith, we can strike.  Often, this get

         22  management to the table, it gets them talking and an

         23  agreement can be reached.

         24                 The nurses who work in public

         25  facilities do not have this option.  The Taylor Law
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          2  has effectively removed labor's most effective tool.

          3

          4                 The anti- strike provisions of the

          5  Taylor Law are clearly unfair to those who work for

          6  the public.  It gives carte blanche to the City of

          7  New York to ignore and to deny City employees the

          8  working conditions that every worker deserves.

          9                 The coming year will present many

         10  challenges to the health care labor community.  We

         11  will be faced with a continuing shortage of nurses

         12  at the bedside, diminished resources for hospitals,

         13  and the possible closure and downsizing of needed

         14  health care services.

         15                 Let us not forget the threat to the

         16  health of New Yorkers posed by the Governor's

         17  Commission on Health Care Facilities in the 21st

         18  Century.  We are still dealing with the ripple

         19  effects of the closure of several CMC facilities.

         20                 In addition, we are facing the sale

         21  or closure of Mary Immaculate Hospital and St.

         22  Vincent's- Staten Island.  These closures and

         23  potential closures are in addition, and are

         24  separate, from any recommendations that the

         25  Commission on Health Care Facilities of the 21st
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          2  Century will recommend.

          3                 NYSNA seeks the Committee and the

          4  Council support in our efforts to improve working

          5  conditions and thus, to better patient care.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

          8  much, Ms. Kaleda.

          9                 Before I get questions from my

         10  colleagues, I want to again thank you for being

         11  here, and again, on the very important issue of

         12  health care, and obviously, the service provided by

         13  the nurses.

         14                 You hit upon a couple of issues that

         15  we may entertain as, at least, oversight hearings-

         16  this Committee- at a future date, whether it be

         17  Taylor Law, and obviously the impacts of that on our

         18  work force, and negotiation practices with the City.With

         19  regards to negotiation practices, you are without a

         20  contract for three years, more than three years?

         21                 MS. KALEDA:  Three years, one month,

         22  and sixteen days.  Painful, painful.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Right.

         24                 MS. KALEDA:  There has to be a better

         25  way, there has to be a better way.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And that is

          3  something this Committee is going want to take a

          4  look at.

          5                 A question, what is the status of the

          6  negotiations, do you have a date upcoming for future

          7  negotiations?

          8                 Has there been a good dialog between

          9  you and the Administration?

         10                 MS. KALEDA:  Our last few sessions

         11  have been mediated sessions, and we have filed our

         12  declaration for impasse with the Office of

         13  Collective Bargaining on February 6th.

         14                 You also may know that under the

         15  statute, there is absolutely no time line the OCB

         16  has to follow.

         17                 So again, we have filed for impasse,

         18  but it could be as long as a year, at least, because

         19  there is no timelines in the statute.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And that is

         21  something, again, that this Committee is going to

         22  have to take a look at with regards to negotiation

         23  process; what is good faith?  When we talk about the

         24  Taylor Law, and obviously, the other side of the

         25  Taylor Law is saying workers cannot strike, what is
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          2  the incentive on the other side, to negotiate in

          3  good faith, and then again, that term good faith is

          4  sometimes is very arbitrary.

          5                 Just a quick question on retention

          6  and recruitment. Currently, with the current

          7  situation, I understand that that might be tough,

          8  retention and recruitment, given the situation.

          9  But, what can be done, if anything right now, to

         10  improve whether it be moral and in turn, the

         11  recruitment and retention of nurses?

         12                 MS. KALEDA:  Yes, well right now, it

         13  is related to the contract.  The starting salaries

         14  are $12,000 to $20,000 behind the private sector.

         15  We cannot recruit nurses right now.  We cannot

         16  retain them because staffing is so bad, and that the

         17  moral is very bad.  We issued a big report in the

         18  fall.  We believe that the health care situation in

         19  our HHC facilities are at crisis level.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Yes, okay,

         21  thank you very much.

         22                 Questions from Council Member Mark-

         23  Viverito.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  Thank

         25  you, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 Just a quick question, you are

          3  mentioning the discrepancy between the private and

          4  the public sector rate of pay for the nurses.  What

          5  is the rate?  Give me starting salary, the range in

          6  terms of those nurses that are in the HHC

          7  facilities.

          8                 MS. KALEDA:  Yes, the starting salary

          9  right now for nurses at HHC facilities, with no

         10  experience, is $54,000.

         11                      The starting salary for most of

         12  our private sector facilities is $65,000.  In

         13  addition--

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  In

         15  terms of- and maybe your are also enclosing the

         16  benefits?

         17                 MS. KALEDA:  It is also experience

         18  differential.  If I am an experienced nurse in the

         19  private sector, I can get hired on Step- 21, but at

         20  HHC, I can only get hired in at Step- 5, so that

         21  generates up to an additional $20,000 difference.

         22  They cannot recruit experienced nurses.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  And

         24  what is the benefits that are provided for those

         25  nurses that are in HHC facilities, that are in the
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          2  public sector?

          3                 MS. KALEDA:  They are comparable with

          4  the other municipal workers.  They are in the same-

          5  we are in the NYCERS' pension plan.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  Is

          7  there a difference in the benefits package with a

          8  private sector?

          9                 MS. KALEDA:  Not substantial.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  Not

         11  substantially, okay.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MS. KALEDA: You are welcome.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         15  Council member.

         16                 Any other questions?

         17                 You hit upon, again, a very important

         18  issue of health care for, again, many of our

         19  patients throughout the City. I think you do provide

         20  a real important service to the City.  Like I said,

         21  you have hit upon a couple of issues that we would

         22  like to entertain as this Committee goes forward.

         23                 So, we will keep in touch.

         24                 Thank you very much for your time and

         25  testimony today.
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          2                 Thank you, Ms. Kaleda.

          3                 MS. KALEDA:  Okay, thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Our next panel

          5  will consist of

          6  Pat Purcell from the Food Workers Union, Local 1500.

          7                 MR. PURCELL:  Good afternoon,

          8  Chairman Addabbo and members of the Committee.

          9                 I want to thank you for the

         10  opportunity to speak to you today on issues facing

         11  grocery workers in New York City, and I am here

         12  today on behalf of my President, Bruce W. Both.

         13                 President Both, the 23,000 members of

         14  my Local Union, Food Workers Union Local 1500, and

         15  the over 100,000 UFCW members in the area, greatly

         16  appreciate the leadership you have shown in

         17  responding to the needs of working men and women.

         18                 In fact, it was just about a year ago

         19  as you mentioned, that this Committee held hearings

         20  on the labor practices of Wal- Mart.  We are still

         21  waiting for Wal- Mart actually to show up for that

         22  hearing.  Your Committee helped shape a citywide

         23  debate on this retail monster.

         24                 I am proud to say that has lead to an

         25  educated constituency that has consistently demanded
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          2  that Wal- Mart greatly improve its treatment of

          3  workers if it ever intends to open its doors here in

          4  New York City.  As of today, New York City remains

          5  Wal- Mart free.

          6                 While that threat remains, and I

          7  encourage us all to stay vigilant on the topic of

          8  Wal- Mart, I am here today to hope to begin

          9  educating Councilmember's on a more present threat

         10  that is already effecting grocery workers and the

         11  economy of this city, and that would be the growth

         12  of the upscale gourmet food industry and subsequent

         13  decline of unionized markets in New York City.

         14                 Consider the following:  The

         15  supermarket industry, unlike many manufacturing jobs

         16  and other industries, cannot be exported oversees or

         17  south of our borders.  It will always be a large

         18  industry here in New York City, and therefore, it

         19  must be an industry that helps improve the economy.

         20                 Unfortunately, the industry is seeing

         21  the largest growth in the upscale grocer category.

         22  These new gourmet stores, such as Whole Foods,

         23  Gourmet Garage, Balducci's, which has reentered the

         24  market, and Amish Markets, just to name a few, pay

         25  substantially lower wages, provide fewer hours of

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  work and offer benefits designed to make them

          3  unaffordable for their workers to utilize.

          4                 These stores are replacing

          5  responsible employers like Pathmark, Stop and Shop,

          6  D'Agostinoos, Key Food, Gristedes and Fairway.

          7  These are employers who provide outstanding wages,

          8  employer paid health benefits, employer paid

          9  pensions, and several other benefits that allow

         10  workers to maximize their pay.

         11                 The formula upscale grocers are using

         12  to push out these responsible employers is clear.

         13  They charge very high prices, they keep wages low

         14  and stagnant, they minimize the hours of work

         15  available to employees, they push workers towards

         16  Federal, State and City programs to provide

         17  supplemental benefits such as Food Stamps, WIC,

         18  Health Insurance and numerous other programs. They

         19  crush any attempt by the workers to unionize, and

         20  then they use the huge profits to expand.

         21                 That recipe for success is helping

         22  produce problems we are all reading about.  New York

         23  City is quickly becoming a tale of two cities.

         24  There is a city for those who have, and many who do

         25  not have anything.  Those who can afford to live
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          2  here, and those who are quickly are becoming cannot

          3  afford to.  Those who have to prioritize each day

          4  whether their income will go to rent, food, clothing

          5  or medical expenses, and those who decide between

          6  the $35 carrot cake offered at Baldacci's, or the

          7  $29.99 a pound salmon steak also offered.

          8                 This business model produces a result

          9  that is not beneficial to anyone other than the

         10  wealthy store owners.

         11                 I would like to ask the Committee to

         12  consider working with our union on two proposals

         13  that we believe would help begin the process of

         14  correcting this problem.

         15                 First, consider holding hearings on

         16  the upscale gourmet industry.  With more time, we

         17  could present a more thorough case on why we feel

         18  this problem must be addressed.  We would be able to

         19  present studies and testimony from economic experts,

         20  workers, employers and labor leaders to support the

         21  claims that we are stating here today.

         22                 Secondly, I would ask that the

         23  Committee consider holding hearings on the failure

         24  of the Federal government to protect workers rights

         25  to unionize and to help, possibly, craft a
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          2  resolution would conclude that the City Council

          3  supports the use of Neutrality and Card Checks when

          4  workers seek to unionize over the failed third world

          5  example of democracy currently provided by our

          6  Federal National Labor Relations Board.

          7                 Again, there will be no shortage of

          8  experts, workers, and employers willing to testify

          9  to the positive results of cooperative labor

         10  management relations.

         11                 I acknowledge that there is very

         12  little that can be done legislatively by the Council

         13  due to Federal pre- emption of labor laws, there is

         14  much that can be done by shining a light on these

         15  problems, and responding in a way that is within

         16  your powers.

         17                 A year ago, you started the debate of

         18  Wal- Mart; today we come to you asking that you

         19  begin the dialogue on the decline of responsible

         20  unionized grocers, the rise of greedy, irresponsible

         21  grocers, and its overall impact on the City's

         22  economy, its work force and its people.

         23                 Thank you, and I appreciate your

         24  time.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very
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          2  much, Mr. Purcell.  I really appreciate your time

          3  and testimony.

          4                 At this point, I want to welcome a

          5  new committee member, Council Member Mike Nelson.

          6                 Thank you very much, Council Member

          7  Nelson for being here.

          8                 Before I get to questions from my

          9  colleagues, can you just give us the status- I know

         10  we have had a fantastic hearing on, again, it was

         11  basically big box stores because some of the big box

         12  stores do not pose a problem for their workers.

         13  There are those out there that treat their workers

         14  well.

         15                 MR. PURCELL:  Absolutely.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And their are

         17  those that do not.

         18                 MR. PURCELL:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And those are

         20  the ones we do frown upon here in the City.

         21                 Do you want to just give us a quick

         22  update or the status on that issue?

         23                 MR. PURCELL:  Yes sure, like I said,

         24  it was fantastic what took place here last year

         25  because it has really lead to a just widespread
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          2  education in New York City about Wal- Mart. That has

          3  really, I think, sent a message to Wal- Mart that

          4  this City is going to be very difficult for it to

          5  get into.

          6                 At this point, there were two or

          7  three locations they tried to get into, and because

          8  of the great work done by the council members here,

          9  and some that are right here on this Committee, Wal-

         10  Mart has no spots right now to open.  They are

         11  looking for some spots in Staten Island, but again,

         12  they continue to run into council members and local

         13  people who are basically saying,`you have got to de

         14  better.'

         15                 On the front with the warehouse club,

         16  you are right, there is a warehouse club, Costco,

         17  which we would consider, although it is both union

         18  in some stores, and non- union in others, to be a

         19  responsible employer.  They are paying excellent

         20  wages, in the range of $15 to $16 an hour starting,

         21  very often their minimum pay is above the maximum

         22  pay you could receive at any of these other

         23  warehouse clubs.  They pay full premium for the

         24  health insurance, they contribute to the pension,

         25  and again, that is our example of a responsible
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          2  warehouse club.

          3                 BJ's Warehouse Club on the other end,

          4  we would say, continues to be the example of an

          5  irresponsible one, where their wages are

          6  approximately $5 to $6 less an hour than Costco

          7  provides, however, they do over $5 billion in sales,

          8  they have it within their means to provide better,

          9  especially when you consider the communities that

         10  they are going into to.  They are starting to go

         11  into the communities that are some of the poorest

         12  congressional districts, so we think that there is a

         13  long way for them to go, but as long as we have

         14  employers like Costco setting the example in the

         15  warehouse club, we think eventually we are going to

         16  continue to try to pull BJ's up instead of having

         17  them drag the responsible guys down.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I appreciate

         19  your perception and your vision about not only the

         20  union workers, but also the non union workers, that

         21  obviously do provide a valid service in the City

         22  throughout our stores, and again, the plight of

         23  their work place environment as well.  I appreciate

         24  your mentioning them.

         25                 Councilman Gennaro with a question.

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chairman. I will take this opportunity to thank

          4  you for your great leadership on the big box issue

          5  overall, and the Wal- Mart issue in particular.    I

          6  think that you and Local 1500 and many other unions

          7  who participate in that really, kind of, set the

          8  tone and done the education that was necessary, and

          9  has really been a bulwark against these invaders, if

         10  I can say that, and I want to thank you for that,

         11  and I want to thank Pat for that.

         12                 MR. PURCELL:  Thank you very much.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  I am very

         14  happy that my dream has come true, and I am finally

         15  serving on this committee, and I look forward to

         16  working with you and all of the members of the union

         17  community to move the City forward.

         18                 So thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank

         19  you, Pat, for your great work.

         20                 MR. PURCELL:  Thank you very much,

         21  council member.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         23  Councilman Gennaro.

         24                 Council Member Mark- Viverito.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  Thank
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          2  you, Mr. Chair.

          3                 Good afternoon, Mr. Purcell.

          4                 MR. PURCELL:  Good afternoon council

          5  member.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  Just

          7  in questioning because you present here- I always

          8  like to try to put a face to these issues.

          9                 MR. PURCELL:  Sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  And I

         11  think that we really, in terms of understanding the

         12  plight of the workers, we need to understand what

         13  they are facing, so, you give testimony here about

         14  good employers like Pathmark, and some of the other

         15  grocers versus the green grocers.

         16                 Give me an example of what they are

         17  paid in terms of the markets, the ones that are of

         18  concern to you, and an example of what kind of

         19  tactics they implement against workers that try to

         20  unionize.

         21                 MR. PURCELL:  Sure, let me briefly

         22  state some of the positives of the responsible

         23  employers so you can see why we would be concerned.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  Yes.

         25                 MR. PURCELL:  Our average full- timer
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          2  in our grocery store right now is averaging, right

          3  now, approximately $17 to $18 per hour.  That does

          4  not include the cost of benefits, which our

          5  employers pay 100 percent of the premium for the

          6  health insurance for the part- time and full- time

          7  workers.  That also covers for full- timers, the

          8  entire family.  They pay 100 percent of the cost of

          9  the contribution to the employees pension.  They are

         10  provided time and a half when they work on Sundays

         11  They are provided time and a half when they work

         12  over eight hours.  We joke at times that we have 16

         13  year old's pushing carts, and we get calls from

         14  their parents because their prescription plan is,

         15  quite often, better than their parents plans with

         16  the corporations they work for.

         17                 That is what we are very concerned

         18  about being threatened because the better the plans,

         19  the better the wages, the better the benefits, the

         20  less that they have to rely on other services to

         21  pick up that slack.

         22                 What we are seeing in a lot of these

         23  gourmet stores are wages well under $10 an hour,

         24  which is well below what a living wage could be.

         25  They are not providing 40 hours of work.  That is a
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          2  big issue because even in some case where some

          3  employers, let us say, provided $11 an hour, they

          4  are only giving them 32 hours a week of pay.  There

          5  is no overtime unless it is the law.  The health

          6  benefits is a tremendous problem.  Simply put, you

          7  cannot afford to pay the contribution.  The average

          8  family contribution in the upscale grocer industry

          9  to cover your family would be approximately $50 a

         10  week, it is $200 a month.  They are only making so

         11  much an hour to begin with, they are not getting the

         12  40 hours. At the end of the day, they have to make

         13  that priority decision. And they are absolutely not

         14  being able to plan for the future.  So, it is a

         15  real- I would say two things that would give you an

         16  example.

         17                 Approximately I would say 45 percent

         18  of payroll and budget in a supermarket, currently

         19  goes, in unionized supermarkets, goes towards

         20  workers and workers benefits.  That rate is, I would

         21  say, anywhere from 18 to 22 percent in the non-

         22  union stores.  That is where we also talk about the

         23  high prices that they charge.

         24                 The other example I would give you

         25  that the average monthly- on the average month, 86
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          2  percent of our 23,000 members are being covered

          3  under health insurance and paid for by the employer.

          4    Right now in most of these stores, we are seeing

          5  the actual covered workers falling under 40 percent.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  And

          7  if I may, Mr. Chair, I know I am new to the Council,

          8  I am new to this Committee. I want to say that I was

          9  very, very happy that New York City is Wal- Mart

         10  free, extremely happy but I also I think recently we

         11  have been seeing the counter- offensive of Wal-

         12  Mart.

         13                 I have been reading about these

         14  surveys that have been done of New York City

         15  residents, indicating that the majority do favor the

         16  opening of a Wal- Mart, although they are concerned

         17  about the low salaries that are paid.  So, I know

         18  that there is a counter- offensive on the horizon

         19  here that is happening, so, we have got to kind of I

         20  think, step up our actions in terms of what we do to

         21  ensure that they do not get their foot in the door,

         22  and try to base it on popularity or the people

         23  wanting a Wal- Mart in the City, and also, I am

         24  encouraged by what you see in terms of like

         25  Massachusetts, et cetera, holding Wal- Mart
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          2  accountable to the fact that they are not

          3  contributing enough to the health plan.

          4                 So, I look forward to the work of

          5  this committee. I am glad to be a part of it, and

          6  so, thank you for your efforts too.

          7                 MR. PURCELL:  Thank you very much,

          8  council member.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Council member,

         10  I certainly want to welcome you again to the

         11  Committee, and thank you very much for your input.

         12                 And just again, Pat, to put a face on

         13  this.

         14                 MR. PURCELL:  Sure.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  How many

         16  workers are we talking about in the City?

         17                 MR. PURCELL:  Oh wow, if we combine

         18  union and non union--

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Sure.

         20                 MR. PURCELL: -- grocery workers, I

         21  would say well over 100,000, well over 100,000.  It

         22  is a tremendous part of the city industry right now.

         23

         24                 That is why I suggest, if we are able

         25  to at some point, in additional hearings, we would
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          2  really like to break down for you where the industry

          3  was, let us say five years ago, and ten years ago,

          4  and where it is going today in regards to growth,

          5  and actually where it is starting to decline in

          6  economics such as wages and benefits but it is a

          7  tremendous industry.  As we said, it is not going

          8  anywhere.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That is right.

         10                 MR. PURCELL:  You have got to have

         11  food stores.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  It will only

         13  continue to grow.

         14                 MR. PURCELL:  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Right.

         16                 Council Member Nelson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chair.

         19                 Hi, Pat.  It will be nice working

         20  with you for some time.

         21                 MR. PURCELL:  Thank you very much.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Did you ever

         23  see the jib jab?  You have, right?

         24                 MR. PURCELL:  Yes, several of them.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  That should
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          2  be part of the educational process because I was not

          3  sure which way I was going with this because you

          4  want to help all the working men and women. You want

          5  to help the constituency.

          6                 MR. PURCELL:  Absolutely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And here,

          8  indeed, is the balance.

          9                 After seeing that, it really helped

         10  me formulate more of an opinion.  I do not know if

         11  most of you probably have not seen this but it

         12  shows, correct me if I am wrong, it shows a guy`I

         13  cannot wait to get a Wal- Mart here', and it shows

         14  you, he gets a shopping cart, and the shopping cart

         15  gets filled up to the ceiling, and all of this, and

         16  he keeps on doing this, and eventually he is

         17  outsourced--

         18                 MR. PURCELL:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:-- from his

         20  job.  So are a lot of other people, but he still

         21  says,`but you can still find me at Wal- Mart, I will

         22  be in isle nine.'

         23                 MR. PURCELL:  Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And shows him

         25  with a mop.
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          2                 MR. PURCELL:  Yes, he is working

          3  there.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  True or not,

          5  I do not know but it certainly formulated, at least,

          6  a general opinion in my mind.

          7                 I thought it was very, very important

          8  and the educational process must be there because if

          9  you see the polls, if people were to understand that

         10  situation, more would be very helpful to all of us I

         11  think.  And also, we will be working, I am sure, the

         12  square footage because we do not want to hurt as far

         13  as, I might have missed and I apologize, every

         14  morning I have got to take my wife to radiation, so

         15  I am going to be late to morning meetings for sure

         16  not to hurt the small supermarket, and then what you

         17  do, of course, is hurting all of their customers

         18  because, obviously, they are not going just take out

         19  of their pockets--

         20                 MR. PURCELL:  Absolutely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: -- they know

         22  what the price is worth, and I appreciate your

         23  working with that.

         24                 MR. PURCELL:  Yes, we have a great

         25  opportunity to work together on that, and yes, that
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          2  is the last thing, the last thing.  Small business

          3  has gotten beaten up pretty bad over- and that is

          4  that last thing that we want to do.

          5                 It is really the employers that have

          6  the means, that really have the means to do better,

          7  and they are just simply going off of greed, and

          8  they prefer to simply use taxpayer funded programs

          9  as an extension of their human resources and

         10  personnel.               So, we are completely in

         11  agreement with you, and have worked with you on

         12  making sure that we do not want small businesses

         13  being affected by anything that we do, and when we

         14  take our actions at other supermarkets and what have

         15  you, that is why we are focused on the upscale

         16  stores.  It is not the small player, then ten

         17  workers, the fifteen workers and stuff like that, a

         18  Key Food, Associated, it is these big guys, and you

         19  also would not find them charging $29.99 for a

         20  salmon steak at a Key Food either.  So, we are

         21  really targeting those who have the means to do

         22  better.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Good, I look

         24  forward to working continuously on that, and again,

         25  I am very happy to be a member of this committee.
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          2                 MR. PURCELL:  Thank you very much and

          3  for all your work.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And we do a

          5  lot of good stuff.

          6                 Good to see you, Pat, thanks.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thanks Council

          9  Member Nelson.

         10                 Mr. Purcell you brought up, and a

         11  couple of issues that we would like to work with you

         12  on in the future hearings, so we look forward to

         13  that dialog, and thank you very much for your time

         14  and testimony today.

         15                 MR. PURCELL:  Thank you, and I thank

         16  the Committee for all your hard work.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Always a

         18  pleasure, thank you.

         19                 Our next panelist is Dayle Pivetta.

         20  Dale is a worker at the Red Eye Grill.

         21                 MS. PIVETTA:  I want to first

         22  apologize for not having any written testimony.  I

         23  am very new at this, and I am a little guy.  So, I

         24  do not really have any written testimony besides

         25  what I have just for me here to say.
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          2                 My name is Dayle Pivetta.  I am a

          3  server at the Red Eye Grill.  It is one of the

          4  Fireman Hospitality Restaurants across from Carnegie

          5  Hall in Midtown Manhattan.

          6                 You may have heard of our complaint

          7  against the owners and management of the Red Eye

          8  through our campaign protests or the local news

          9  media.

         10                 I would like to take this opportunity

         11  to clarify our position, and ask for support in

         12  pursuit of our Fair Wage and Hour Practices.

         13                 Myself and 50 other of my co-

         14  workers, front of house and back of house, have

         15  filed a federal lawsuit.  It is very simple in its

         16  claim.  The owners and managers of the Red Eye Grill

         17  operate the restaurant in violation of the Federal

         18  Labor Standards Act.

         19                 For instance, employees are not paid

         20  for the correct number of hours they work, and are

         21  not paid proper overtime wages. Employees are not

         22  paid the federally mandated minimum wage, nor spread

         23  of hours pay.  These violations apply to all non-

         24  salaried employees, and we are all non- union as

         25  well, and we wish to remain this way.  This is
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          2  servers, bar tenders, bus boys, cooks, everything.

          3                 Additionally, our claim includes the

          4  illegal mismanagement of servers tips.  Tips that

          5  customers, the people of New York, generously give

          6  to us for our hard work.  They are garnished by the

          7  owners, and split with managers to supplement their

          8  salaries.  Neither of these practices are legal

          9  within the policies of the Fair Labor Standards Act.

         10                 I am asking you to endorse our

         11  campaign by not dining at the Red Eye Grill, even

         12  though this hurts us right now, or any of the other

         13  Fireman Hospitality Groups restaurants, which are

         14  the Brooklyn Diner, Shelly's New York, Cafe

         15  Fiorello, Tretere adel Arte (phonetic), and Bond 45.

         16                 We think that with your help this

         17  might bring the owners and management to realize

         18  that they are not doing the right thing, and people

         19  do care.

         20                 I also ask that you, perhaps, show

         21  support in the form of a quick letter or a phone

         22  call, to the Red Eye Grill or the Fireman

         23  Hospitality Group.  We ask that you inform the

         24  managers and owners that you will not patronize a

         25  business that does not pay its employees fairly.
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          2                 The Red Eye Grill can be reached, I

          3  have all the information here, I do not know if you

          4  want to write it down, but if you do their phone

          5  number is 212- 541- 9000 or if you would like to

          6  write a letter to the Red Eye Grill, the address is

          7  890 7th Avenue at 56th Street, New York, New York

          8  10019.  Or if you would like to contact the Fireman

          9  Hospitality Group, the phone number is 212- 399-

         10  1325 or you can write them a letter at 888 7th

         11  Avenue, Suite 203, New York, New York 10019.

         12                 Thank you very much for your time.

         13                 I will be in contact with all of you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Dayle, I

         15  appreciate your being here, and again, in your

         16  leading the fight with your workers, and the work

         17  place environment that you have there.

         18                 Have you reached out, again, you are

         19  not unionized we know, and that is why, again, I

         20  like that this Committee addresses both union and

         21  non- union issues.

         22                 Have you reached out to any other

         23  group that may be interested in your issue?

         24                 MS. PIVETTA:  Yes, we have.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Who?
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          2                 MS. PIVETTA:  We work with ROC, New

          3  York.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.

          5                 MS. PIVETTA:  They are side by side

          6  with us, but this is just me, as one of the workers,

          7  trying to let you know that it is us, and not them.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I understand

          9  that, and I do believe, ROC, who I have met with and

         10  we have had, actually, a hearing about restaurant

         11  workers, and their work place issues.  I believe you

         12  have reached out to the right person, or the right

         13  entity I should say, and we will see what we can do

         14  as a Committee to address this issue.

         15                 So again, I appreciate your time here

         16  today.

         17                 If there be no further questions from

         18  my colleagues?

         19                 Council Member Seabrook.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Thank you

         21  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 Just a question, has there been a

         23  complaint filed with the Labor Relations Board in

         24  what you are saying?

         25                 MS. PIVETTA:  There have been lots of
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          2  different complaints and things going on involving

          3  the lawsuit.  I would rather not be the one to speak

          4  on those issues because I am not the most

          5  knowledgeable in all of the things that have been

          6  filed.

          7                 I just know about the lawsuit that I

          8  am involved in right now with the garnishing of my

          9  tips.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  And lastly,

         11  what is the resistance, or why the resistance of

         12  having a labor union?

         13                 MS. PIVETTA:  I think in the

         14  restaurant where we work, this is not my full- time

         15  job.  It is my means of making money, but it is not

         16  what I do with my life, and I think most of the

         17  people involved are similar and the restaurant, I

         18  know, is not wanting a union.  It is not a union

         19  restaurant.  They do not want to be, and we are

         20  happy working there.  I like the money I make, I

         21  like the people I work with.  I just want it to be

         22  legal.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Okay.

         24                 MS. PIVETTA:  Thank you very much.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Okay.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  Can I

          3  ask you one quick question?

          4                 Thanks Chairman.

          5                 Please, of all of the restaurants

          6  that are owned by this company, how many employers

          7  would you say you have, that there are?

          8                 MS. PIRETTA:  Oh, in all of the

          9  restaurants?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:

         11  Because you are saying it is one company that owns

         12  all of these restaurants.

         13                 MS. PIVETTA:  Yes, it is one company,

         14  and there are in our restaurant, there are over 50

         15  people in the lawsuit.  That does not include all of

         16  the people that work at the restaurant, front and

         17  back of house, I mean, 1,000 I am sure, I mean

         18  hundreds of workers.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  In

         20  that one restaurant?

         21                 MS. PIVETTA:  No, in the company or

         22  just one restaurant?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  Okay,

         24  no, no, no, I thought you were referring to your one

         25  restaurant.
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          2                 MS. PIVETTA:  Oh, no, no, no.  In my

          3  one restaurant, there are over 50 front of house,

          4  and the back of house is extensive.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  Okay

          6  so between all of them, probably over 500?

          7                 MS. PIVETTA:  Sure.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  Okay,

          9  it is too bad to hear about the adversity due to the

         10  labor unions because clearly then you would have an

         11  outlet into which to express your grievance, and to

         12  get some sort of resolution to it, but thank you for

         13  your time.

         14                 MS. PIVETTA:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

         16  much Dayle, we will keep in touch.

         17                 Our next panel, Vernon Thorpe from

         18  TWU, Local 100.

         19                 MR. THORPE:  Good afternoon Chairman

         20  Addabbo, other members of the Committee.  Thank you

         21  for allowing me to testify. I work for the Transport

         22  Workers Union, Local 100, and I am here to give

         23  testimony on behalf of our president, Roger

         24  Toussaint, and our membership.

         25                 I would like to speak to you about
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          2  the erosion of the Civil Service, and about two

          3  specific practices that contribute to that erosion.

          4                 The first is the practice of making

          5  public work private through contracting- out.

          6                 On any given day, there are thousands

          7  of persons in the New York City subway system, in

          8  the tunnels, in secure communications rooms, in

          9  restricted yard areas, who are not employees of the

         10  New York City Transit, whose names are often unknown

         11  to the Authority.  These are the employees of

         12  private contractors and private sub- contractors

         13  doing the work of transit employees.  Occasionally,

         14  the contracting- out of our work is defended on the

         15  grounds that it is specialized work we cannot

         16  perform.  More often it is defended as cheaper.

         17  Frequently, neither is true.

         18                 Contracted- out work is performed

         19  with inadequate oversight and can pose a hazard to

         20  the safety of the public and of those who perform

         21  it.  We have found unqualified, unprotected contract

         22  workers in a Manhattan subway station forced to pull

         23  asbestos out of conduits with their bare hands.  We

         24  have found lead paint fragments scattered throughout

         25  a busy station in Brooklyn after a painting
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          2  contractor had passed through.

          3                 When public work is done by public

          4  employees, abuses like this do not take place.

          5                 Subcontractor employees are also

          6  subject to abuse. In as case last year, the Brooklyn

          7  D.A. Won tens of thousands of dollars in back pay

          8  for masons who had been illegally underpaid. This

          9  hinged on the initiative of the Brooklyn D.A.'s

         10  office because the Transit Authority's own Inspector

         11  General's office fails to police subcontracting.

         12                 Apart from the costs that contracting

         13  out impose on the public directly, there is also a

         14  social cost in the loss of stable civil service

         15  jobs.

         16                 It seems to us that there are several

         17  principles governing contracting- out public work

         18  that are not adequately codified or adequately

         19  enforced.  Among them are these:

         20                 One, work that can be done by public

         21  employees should be done by public employees.  Need

         22  should be certified before public work is contracted

         23  out.

         24                 Two, work contracted out must be as

         25  transparent as work done in- house.  Any and all
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          2  records that would be public when work is performed

          3  by a public agency must be public when it is

          4  performed by a contractor.

          5                 Three, oversight of contracted- out

          6  work must include enforcement of the same rigorous

          7  safety standards that public employees adhere to.

          8                 Four, in determining prevailing wage

          9  for contracted out work, account must be taken of

         10  the entire wage package, including pension and

         11  health benefits, and not cash wages alone.

         12                 We hope that this Committee will be

         13  give attention to the detrimental consequences of

         14  contracting- out public work.

         15                 My second topic is the erosion of

         16  public service through the proliferation of non-

         17  Civil Service titles, and through changing the

         18  relationship among Civil Service titles.

         19                 In transit, a striking example of

         20  this has been the elimination of promotional

         21  opportunity for cleaners. Traditionally, when one

         22  became a cleaner at the Transit Authority, you were

         23  taking the first step in a lifelong career.  New

         24  York City Transit's former Vice President for subway

         25  started as a cleaner. The current Vice President for
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          2  Human Resources, David Hyland (phonetic), started as

          3  a cleaner.  The President of Local 100, Roger

          4  Toussaint, started as a cleaner.

          5                 But cleaners hired since the mid-

          6  1990's have been cut off from access to promotional

          7  exams.  They have become a caste with little or no

          8  opportunity of winning promotion.

          9                 That Transit management would find

         10  this acceptable is saddening.  But more worrisome is

         11  that DCAS, which is supposed to be the watchdog of

         12  the Civil Service, was not only complicit in this

         13  change but apparently took the main initiative in

         14  it.

         15                 Related issues abound in other parts

         16  of the transit work force as new technology is

         17  changing work.  The TA is preparing to introduce new

         18  job titles outside existing bargaining units, as

         19  well as planning to redefine existing job titles.

         20  DCAS has conferred with management on these possible

         21  changes, but not with out Union.

         22                 In effect, DCAS has lent its office

         23  to management's efforts to weaken union

         24  representation at the TA.

         25                 Our Union continues to seek to
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          2  restore promotional opportunities to cleaners and

          3  other titles, and we are seeking to reign in DCAS's

          4  improper practices.

          5                 We strongly suspect that these

          6  practices go beyond transit, and that DCAS has more

          7  broadly forsaken its role as guardian of the Civil

          8  Service.  Given the importance of the Civil Service

          9  as a barrier to patronage and abuse, and a guarantee

         10  of the quality and integrity of public service, we

         11  think this should be a matter for public concern.

         12                 We hope this Committee will find the

         13  time in the course of its busy schedule to give

         14  attention to these issues, which impinge on the jobs

         15  of tens of thousand of public employees and the

         16  nature of public service more generally.

         17                 Thank you, and I appreciate your

         18  allowing me the time to speak.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         20  Vernon, and a couple of questions here.

         21                 You bring up two very important and

         22  good issues, the first issue regarding contract-

         23  out, is not only a worker issue but is a safety

         24  issue.

         25                 MR. THORPE:  Yes.

                                                            46

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Obviously, in

          3  terms of the safety in our railway but also,

          4  obviously, in the sense of ridership safety as well.

          5                 MR. THORPE:  Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  The second

          7  issue with regards to the cleaners, how many

          8  cleaners, of the job title of cleaners, how many

          9  workers are we speaking of, currently, roughly?

         10                 MR. THORPE:  It is about 3,000

         11  cleaners in the TA.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And you are

         13  saying that since the mid- 90's that change has

         14  occurred, correct?

         15                 MR. THORPE:  Right, yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, because

         17  that could be an issue that we are going to have to

         18  take a look at, and as far as the contracting- out,

         19  we have seen it in other city agencies as well.  We

         20  have actually touched upon it, this Committee has in

         21  the past, and it is something that we are going to

         22  probably have to address as well again.

         23                 So, you bringing up here is

         24  appropriate.

         25                 MR. THORPE:  It is also an issue with
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          2  state agencies also.  I think Public Employees

          3  Federation has some legislation that they have

          4  introduced in the State that would force the state

          5  agencies to, how would you say, keep track of all

          6  the contracting that is done.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And you also

          8  mentioned that your own Inspector General's Office

          9  within the Transit Authority has just been

         10  complacent regarding this issue.

         11                 MR. THORPE:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, that is

         13  something else we may need to address.

         14                 Questions from Council Member Mark-

         15  Viverito.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  Thank

         17  you, Mr. Chair.

         18                 Just two quick questions, Mr. Thorpe,

         19  in terms of the subcontracting that is being done,

         20  is that something that has been on the rise just

         21  recently?

         22                 I mean, I know it is probably an

         23  ongoing issue but have you seen that it has been

         24  exacerbated during the past four years, or is this

         25  something that has been happening steadily?
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          2                 I mean, I am just trying to get a

          3  sense if this is something that is on the rise more

          4  now than it was before?

          5                 MR. THORPE:  Well, it seems like it

          6  is increasing to us, and another thing that is

          7  happening along with it is they are removing many of

          8  the workers in certain areas.

          9                 Okay for instance, if you walk

         10  through your subways, you will see that they are

         11  degrading, they are not- there are structural

         12  problems, tiles are falling off, the steel is

         13  rotting, there is lead paint, there is paint

         14  peeling.  Well recently last year, there were 170

         15  structural maintainers who were, believe it or not,

         16  moved to other titles, and that left- I mean, there

         17  were not enough people to do the work anyway but

         18  when they removed these people and made some of them

         19  cleaners and other titles, they brought in

         20  contractors to do some of the work.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MARK- VIVERITO:  Okay,

         22  and then the other question was just following up on

         23  the training of the MTA workers. I know that there

         24  was an ongoing discussion about the MTA not

         25  providing the training for the front- line staff in
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          2  terms of security, and that the union took the

          3  initiative on its own to start training the

          4  employees.  I mean, I am just trying to find out the

          5  status of that.

          6                 Has there been any progress with the

          7  MTA in terms of allocating monies to the training,

          8  or including this?

          9                 MR. THORPE:  No, not to my knowledge

         10  there has not.

         11                 Like you said, last year we did our

         12  own thing, we brought in an Israeli expert and they

         13  came in and trained us.

         14                 You are speaking about terrorist

         15  training, right?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  Yes,

         17  exactly.

         18                 MR. THORPE:  Yes, terrorist

         19  recognition training. We had to do it ourselves.

         20  The MTA, I do not know if they are on another planet

         21  or something, they just do not understand how

         22  important this is.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  And

         24  then also, just finally in terms of the status of

         25  the contract negotiations or the, you know, where
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          2  things are right now between the MTA and the TWU?

          3                 MR. THORPE:  Well, we are just in

          4  process, I mean you know, no one sat down yet, there

          5  is just both sides are talking and nothing has

          6  happened.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  Okay,

          8  thank you.

          9                 MR. THORPE:  Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         11  Council member.

         12                 To follow up what Council Member

         13  Mark- Viverito brought up going into negotiations,

         14  obviously, that is an issue that is going to be very

         15  near and dear to this Committee's heart as far as

         16  the furtherance of those contract negotiations.

         17                 I think many agencies and other

         18  entities who are negotiating contracts are looking

         19  at this process.

         20                 MR. THORPE:  Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  It has been a

         22  very interesting process, with regards to its prior

         23  negotiations or even its current negotiations.  To

         24  say the least, it has been a very interesting

         25  process.
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          2                 As of today, are you optimistic that

          3  something can be worked out soon, or are we just

          4  looking again at an endless stream of back and forth

          5  negotiations going nowhere?

          6                 MR. THORPE:  Well, we are optimistic

          7  that something positive will happen in the coming

          8  weeks, but right now things are as they were last

          9  week.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  It is because

         11  of, as I have been watching the negotiation process,

         12  that lead me to think that this Committee should

         13  entertain the issues of the "good faith" negotiation

         14  process, and the Taylor Law, and all the other

         15  issues that go along with the negotiation process,

         16  so again, we are all watching and hopefully for the

         17  sake of the workers, for the sake of the

         18  governmental entities involved, and for the sake of

         19  the ridership, hopefully things will get resolved

         20  soon.

         21                 MR. THORPE:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Vernon, thank

         23  you very much for your time and testimony.

         24                 MR. THORPE:  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  If there by no
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          2  other questions, thank you.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 Our next panel is Sandy Socolar,

          5  District Council 1707, the Childcare Workers.

          6                 MS. SOCOLAR:  Thank you, Sandy

          7  Socolar, and I do policy research for District

          8  Council 1707 that represents daycare workers, and

          9  head start workers and other employees of non-

         10  profit agencies that get public funding.

         11                 I am very grateful that we have a

         12  chance to bring you issues that we hope the

         13  Committee will be addressing this year, that you

         14  have addressed in the past, with a very important

         15  hearing that you conducted in December of 2004 that

         16  was really very impressive.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  It is amazing

         18  how time flies.               As I was looking at my

         19  notes in preparation of this committee hearing to

         20  find out that we did have that hearing in 2004, I

         21  was surprised that the time had passed.

         22                 So, I look forward to working with

         23  you again, this year, especially.

         24                 MS. SOCOLAR:  As I looked over the

         25  testimony, there were about seven or eight different
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          2  items that advocates put together, it was a very

          3  valuable hearing, and we were very grateful that you

          4  took the initiative to arrange it.

          5                 The three issues that we feel would

          6  be important for your Committee's oversight and

          7  legislation, the first of them is the question of

          8  due process rights for day care workers.

          9                 Like other workers we are firmly

         10  convinced, as I am sure you are, that workers should

         11  not be dismissed without cause, and what we need to

         12  do is to ensure that when the City transfers a

         13  contract for a childcare program from one sponsoring

         14  board to another, that the new contract with that

         15  new agency includes a provision that the day care

         16  workers cannot be terminated without just cause, or

         17  due process.

         18                 The program integrity, stability and

         19  workers' basic rights require that the day care

         20  employees cannot be terminated arbitrarily, and

         21  certainly not by reason of their race, their

         22  nationality, religion or gender.  All staff should

         23  be provided with due process protection.  This

         24  important provision we believe needs to be addressed

         25  and legislated by the New York City Council, that a
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          2  worker cannot be dismissed without cause.

          3                 The second important issue is the

          4  right to organize and bargain collectively.  One of

          5  the basic principles in our democracy is that people

          6  have the right to organize and have a voice in their

          7  conditions of work, and it must be made clear that

          8  New York City recognizes and supports the rights of

          9  public- funded, non- profit agencies employees and

         10  subcontractors like family day care providers to

         11  organize and negotiate their conditions of work.

         12                 When an agency puts up a bid to get a

         13  contract with an RFP with the City to provide child

         14  care services, we believe the City should inform the

         15  agency that it is City policy that the workers have

         16  a right to join a union, and engage in collective

         17  bargaining without intimidation, or threat of

         18  reprisal by management, and any agency granted a

         19  child care contract should be asked to notify the

         20  employees and subcontractors that they will remain

         21  neutral, that they recognize the employees right to

         22  organize without interference from management.

         23                 We believe one thing that can be done

         24  is that if employees try to organize and are met

         25  with intimidation, reprisals, or firings, they
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          2  should be able to report this to the City Council

          3  Committee on Labor, which could hold a hearing and

          4  engage in fact finding, and make it known to the

          5  public what the agency actions have been in this

          6  instance.

          7                 Penalties should be established for

          8  those agencies that violate workers basic democratic

          9  rights to organize and have a voice in their

         10  conditions of work.

         11                 The third issue with our contract

         12  negotiations due to come up are, our contract, which

         13  took three years to get negotiated is due to expire

         14  at the end of March, and we know that providing the

         15  children in our day care centers, children of low

         16  income working parents, need a quality early

         17  childhood education because that will prepare them

         18  for doing well in school, and doing well in their

         19  future work lives.  But that requires that they have

         20  well- qualified teachers and pay equities are making

         21  it practically impossible for our day care centers

         22  to recruit qualified teachers because of the huge

         23  pay disparity with their colleagues in Head Start

         24  and their colleagues in the public schools.

         25                 The current salary rate that the
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          2  centers can offer is $3,600 a year less than the

          3  entry level for the public school teachers, and

          4  $5,800 less than the salary rate for Head Start

          5  teachers, many of them working in the same agency

          6  down the hall from the day care center teachers.

          7                 So, the salary rates as you see are

          8  currently $39,350 for a certified teacher with a

          9  Masters Degree in a day care center, $42,512 for an

         10  entry level teacher with a Masters Degree in the

         11  public schools, and $45,190 in Head Start programs.

         12                 Our certified teachers in the day

         13  care centers work year round with longer work hours

         14  and fewer benefits than the teachers in Head Start

         15  and public schools.  The result is that citywide,

         16  almost one- third of our day care classrooms are

         17  headed by teachers that are in study plans, who are

         18  still working toward their Masters Degree.

         19                 So we hope you will keep your eye on

         20  the pay equity issue in this instance.

         21                 Thank you very much for letting us

         22  present these issues.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you, Ms.

         24  Socolar.

         25                 Again, you are bringing up many
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          2  issues here that, I think, this Committee is going

          3  to have to address.

          4                 You have issues here regarding

          5  recruitment and retention similar to the nurses, and

          6  again, for the service that it again provides an

          7  incredible service for many, how many workers are we

          8  talking about here for day care workers?

          9                 MS. SOCOLAR:  There are something

         10  like 1,473 head teachers, and 1,473 assistant

         11  teachers, you have to have two teachers in each

         12  classroom, the head teacher is supposed to have- be

         13  certified under the Health Code- just like Head

         14  Start and the public schools, and 942 of them as of

         15  last June, were certified and 400- and- something

         16  were not certified.

         17                 The additional problem that when a

         18  teacher can move into the Head Start job, or the

         19  public school at much higher pay, that it takes

         20  months to fill that position and very often that

         21  head teacher job is being filled by an assistant

         22  teacher who has just been upgraded to fill the

         23  space, which is not the kind of qualifications that

         24  we need- a most important role in the component of

         25  early childhood education is the teacher- child
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          2  relationship.

          3                 Is that what you were asking about?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That is very

          5  good.  Obviously, you are giving us an idea of who

          6  these workers are and, obviously, of the service

          7  that they provide, and that is helpful for us as we

          8  go forward in addressing your issue.

          9                 Any questions from my colleagues at

         10  this point?

         11                 Council Member Nelson.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Just a quick

         13  question, Mr. Chair.  I just want to clarify

         14  something.

         15                 What you would like is that the City

         16  recognizes and supports the right of publicly funded

         17  non- for- profits, and sub contracts as to organize

         18  a bargain collectively.

         19                 There is no prescription now, is

         20  there, as far as the charter or labor laws or

         21  501(c)?  You are allowed to do it, is there anything

         22  I am unfamiliar with that would stop you from

         23  legally from doing this?

         24                 MS. SOCOLAR:  The problem would be

         25  like--
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Intimidation?

          3                 MS. SOCOLAR: -- effective life

          4  something, that the very large program for disabled-

          5  it is in City Limits.

          6                 I was just reading today that the

          7  management of this very large agency that has many

          8  services for disabled people, their view is that a

          9  union is not a good idea, and so they were making it

         10  very clear to the employees that they disapproved of

         11  it, and the employees are insisting that they should

         12  have a right to have a voice in- I urge you to look

         13  up the City Limits story in today's paper.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  So it is more of

         15  internal politics?

         16                 MR. SOCOLAR:  The question is as a

         17  matter of principle, whether government funding that

         18  covers virtually all of the costs of the service,

         19  whether they should go to an agency that

         20  deliberately works against the basic democratic

         21  right that we have in the United States, that people

         22  have a right to organize and bargain collectively,

         23  and so, whether it is a question of legislation or a

         24  question of the Committee making it possible where

         25  this is going on for the agency employees to come

                                                            60

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  and ask for a hearing to make the facts known so

          3  that it is known to the general public, the conduct

          4  of this tax- supported agency, whether that would be

          5  of some help.

          6                 But if it could be a statement in the

          7  RFP, that it is the policy of New York City to

          8  assure that employees if they choose to, should have

          9  the right to organize and bargain collectively, free

         10  of intimidation, and that management neutrality

         11  would be recommended and the Card Check would be

         12  recommended.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  So the

         14  problem, apparently, is from within- internal- it is

         15  innocent fighting, if you will. But I was wondering

         16  about the 501(c), I really do not know, I am new to

         17  this Committee, if a not- for- profit 501(c), if

         18  there is some provision therein that they are not

         19  supposed to unionize, if you will?  I do not know, I

         20  doubt it.

         21                 MS. SOCOLAR:  There would not be

         22  anything that prohibits it, the question would be

         23  whether if you have a 501(c)3, you should be

         24  required to honor the right of people to make a

         25  decision for themselves as to whether they want to
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          2  organize.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  It sounds

          4  right but.

          5                 MS. SOCOLAR:  There is no provision

          6  that prohibits them from organizing.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  There is

          8  none, okay.  Okay, I did not think so but I was not

          9  sure if with a 501(c) status, that is why.

         10                 MS. SOCOLAR:  I think it is a Federal

         11  law that people have the right to organize and

         12  bargain collectively.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Well, thank

         14  you Ms. Socolar. I just want to try to clarify that.

         15                 It seems to me it is internal, there

         16  are people who would say`no, we are not going to do

         17  it', and people feel intimidate to go past that

         18  point, even though they want to do it.

         19                 Okay, thank you.

         20                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         22  Council Member Nelson, and with regards to the right

         23  to unionize, we will take a look at that.  You also

         24  brought up a legislative issue regarding

         25  termination, we will take a look at that as well,
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          2  and see what is within the jurisdiction of the City

          3  Council.  We will take a look at language there as

          4  well.

          5                 Ms. Socolar, a real pleasure.

          6                 Thank you very much for being here.

          7                 MS. SOCOLAR:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you.

          9                 Our last panelist for today is Rekha

         10  Eanni, the Restaurant Opportunity Center of New

         11  York, ROC.

         12                 MS. EANNI:  Good afternoon.  My name

         13  is Rekha, I am from ROC New York, and you already

         14  addressed somebody else speaking, working with ROC

         15  New York, so I think you know of us.

         16                 We are a non- profit worker center

         17  representing New York City restaurant workers.  We

         18  currently have over 1,300 members, and hope to

         19  continue growing.

         20                 Just to name a couple of the things

         21  that we have accomplished, for one is that our

         22  members have won over seven campaigns against

         23  restaurant corporations who violate employment and

         24  discrimination laws.

         25                 Dayle who spoke earlier from the Red
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          2  Eye Grill, that is one of the campaigns that we are

          3  currently hoping to win as well.

          4                 A group of, I think, there is about

          5  58 of our members, many of them whom worked at

          6  Windows on the World on top of the World Trade

          7  Center, they recently opened their own cooperatively

          8  owned restaurant, known as Colors.  I hope you guys

          9  have been hearing about it in the news, and that you

         10  go eat there, it is good.

         11                 Also, one of our most important

         12  accomplishments was that we recently published a

         13  study on the restaurant industry, you guys all have

         14  the Executive Summary of that,`Behind the Kitchen

         15  Doors'.  There are several important findings that I

         16  want to talk about real quick.

         17                 The first one is that the restaurant

         18  industry in New York is a very thriving industry.

         19  It accounts for over $8 billion of New York State's

         20  economic activity in 2000, and it is expected to

         21  grow to $14 billion in 2010.  But despite this, many

         22  of the jobs in the industry are low road jobs.

         23                 For example, many of them are low

         24  wage jobs.  The median wage is only $9.11.  In

         25  addition, 90 percent of the workers do not have any
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          2  health insurance, 59 percent of them have

          3  experienced overtime violations.  Many of them have

          4  reported discrimination, particularly against

          5  immigrant restaurant workers and restaurant workers

          6  of color in terms of hiring, promotion and

          7  discipline.

          8                 Despite these findings, I do want to

          9  say that there is a high road to profitability, we

         10  work with many good restaurant employers who provide

         11  a livable wage, they treat their workers fairly, and

         12  they also make good profits.  So, we want to

         13  continue working with these types of employers.

         14                 In response to these findings from

         15  this report, I want to just tell you about a few

         16  policy recommendations that we have come up with.

         17                 The first is known as The Responsible

         18  Restaurant Licensing Bill, which I think many of you

         19  might have already heard about through us.  This is

         20  a proposal for a new city law to increase the

         21  penalties for restaurants that repeatedly violate

         22  employment laws.

         23                 Our research shows that the same

         24  restaurants who are violating laws are the same

         25  one's who are violating Health Code laws.  So
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          2  therefore, this law that will require that when

          3  restaurants repeatedly violate basic employment

          4  laws, the City can refuse to issue or renew their

          5  operating license, and keep in mind, our purpose is

          6  not to shut down restaurants, I mean obviously, when

          7  it makes sense for the people that we represent, we

          8  just want to encourage restaurant employers to do

          9  the right thing by abiding by these employment and

         10  health laws.

         11                 The second thing that I want to bring

         12  up is the restaurant industry round table.  We have

         13  convened a restaurant industry round table which is

         14  comprised of high- road restaurant owners, workers

         15  and government officials to work together to publish

         16  the New York City Restaurant Owner Manual.  Thanks

         17  to this round table, the Department of Consumer

         18  Affairs will now hand every restaurant owner a

         19  complete training manual on their legal obligations

         20  to inform themselves, and inform their workers every

         21  year of all their rights and so forth.

         22                 I am also here to ask you, the City

         23  Council, to come join us on February 28th at Colors

         24  Restaurant to announce this victory.  You can also

         25  get copies of the manual then.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 A couple of questions.  I know we

          6  had, this Committee had had with you a hearing last

          7  year regarding the issue regarding the issues of

          8  workers in our restaurants, and again, the work

          9  place, and it opened my eyes, obviously, to many

         10  workers throughout the City.

         11                 You had mentioned that you have

         12  roughly 1,300 members but think of how many workers

         13  are out there that are in a similar situation, as

         14  your membership, so we are talking about a large

         15  member of city residents, most likely.

         16                 Any efforts on your side to unionize,

         17  I mean obviously, we spoke plenty of times here

         18  today about unionizing of different groups of

         19  workers, any ideas about trying to formulate- you

         20  are almost there, I mean you obviously almost are

         21  that kind of representation for the workers but any

         22  ideas about unionizing restaurant workers?

         23                 MS. EANNI:  I mean, we want to

         24  continue growing our membership.  Right now, only

         25  one percent of restaurant workers are unionized so
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          2  that leaves a lot of people, 1,300 does not account

          3  for much considering there are over 165,000

          4  restaurant workers.  So we have a lot to go.

          5                 We are trying to tackle it little by

          6  little through our outreach.  We are trying to get

          7  members organized.  I do not want to use the word

          8  unionized, but organized, through the campaigns that

          9  I talked about and just other outreach efforts.

         10                 So yes, we do intend to keep growing,

         11  and we do intend to keep organizing these other

         12  restaurant workers.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Would you agree

         14  that the issues that we address with you, are not

         15  only for the sake of your workers and, obviously

         16  their heath related issues and, obviously, their

         17  work place issues but also the health of the patrons

         18  of the restaurant of the restaurants?

         19                 If you could elaborate on that.

         20                 MS. EANNI:  Absolutely, so the idea

         21  is that if you think about it, if a restaurant

         22  workers is working ten to twelve hours a day, they

         23  are not getting breaks, they are using sharp

         24  objects, they are endangering themselves, and they

         25  are overworked, the idea is that they are going to
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          2  cut corners then on proper food handling, further

          3  putting the public at risk.

          4                 That is what I was saying earlier, we

          5  find that restaurant employers who are not providing

          6  the proper training and who are also cutting

          7  employment laws, like not giving breaks and so on,

          8  it is going in turn affect the public's health and

          9  that is something that we see and hear all- in fact,

         10  I do not know if Dayle mentioned it from the Red Eye

         11  Grill, obviously, they have a lot of employment law

         12  violations that have been happening, and we just

         13  found out last week that they have been shut down

         14  for health code violations for, I guess, a day or

         15  however long it took.

         16                 So, it happens fairly a lot.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  If I am not

         18  mistaken, at the testimony that we had in the

         19  hearing in 2005, we had workers who would prepare

         20  food but then be asked to go into the ladies room or

         21  the mens room, clean there, and go back to handling

         22  food.

         23                 MS. EANNI:  Exactly.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And not because

         25  they want to but because they are forced to.
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          2                 MS. EANNI:  Exactly.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So, obviously,

          4  we have a situation here for the worker and for the

          5  patrons of the restaurant.

          6                 MS. EANNI:  Both, yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So, I do look

          8  forward to, again, working with- I liked that

          9  hearing that we had in 2005, and again, it opened my

         10  eyes to many of the issues, and hopefully we can

         11  continue that work.

         12                 MS. EANNI:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Any questions

         14  from my colleagues.

         15                 Council Member Nelson feels nauseous,

         16  so.

         17                 MS. EANNI:  Be careful.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  On that note,

         19  thank you very much for being here.

         20                 MS. EANNI:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I really

         22  appreciate it.

         23                 Ladies and gentlemen, I want to thank

         24  you very much for being a part of the first hearing

         25  of the Legislative Year for this Committee, Civil
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          2  Service and Labor.

          3                 I want to thank my colleagues for

          4  being here, especially the new ones who are here on

          5  the Committee.  I want to thrive on your optimism

          6  and your input, so again, I appreciate it.         We

          7  have introduced many issues today.  We have

          8  addressed and, at least, raised some that concern

          9  not only union but non- union workers.

         10                 Again, there are over 3 million

         11  workers in the City, and we want to work with them

         12  and improve their work place for their benefit and

         13  for the families benefit, and for the sake of the

         14  City as well.

         15                 So, we look forward to doing that

         16  throughout the year.

         17                 Thank you very much, and have a great

         18  day.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 2:34 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, EMILY GRAVES, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 16th day of February 2006.
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          9            I, EMILY GRAVES, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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